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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
Scrabble Entertainment Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Scrabble Entertainment Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and of its
profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s Director’s report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

B S R & Co (a partnership firm with Registered Office:
Registration No. BA61223} converted into 5th Floor, Lodha Excelus

B S R & Co. LLP (a Limited Liability, Partnership Apollo Mills Compound

with LLP Registration No, AAB-8181) N. M. Joshi Marg, Mahalaxmi

with effect from October 14, 2013 Mumbai - 400 011. India



BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Scrabble Entertainment Limited

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs, profits (including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting  Standards (“Ind AS™) specified
under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Scrabble Entertainment Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited

Other Matters

The comparative financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018 prepared
in accordance with Ind AS and included in these financial statements have been audited by the
predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion as per the report dated 29 May 2018.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent

applicable.

(A)  Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(B)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

("

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31 March 2019 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at
31 March 2019 on its financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note
32 to the financial statements:

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative
contracts, for which there were any material foresecable losses.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

©

Mumbai

iv.  The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings
in specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30
December 2016 have not been made in these financial statements since they do
not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2019,

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16)
of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any
director is not in excess of the limits laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
which are required to be commented upon by us,

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

\&”-:6‘;_1“‘

Rajesh Mehra
Partner

21 May 2019 Membership No: 103145
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members
of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, we report the
following:

(1)

(i)

(iit)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, includin
p p g p g
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets
by which all fixed assets are physically verified annually. In our opinion,
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, the Company has
performed physical verification of fixed assets during the year and no
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not
have any immovable property. Thus, paragraph 3(i)c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. The Company has maintained
proper records of inventory. There were no discrepancies noticed on verification between
the physical stock and the book records.

The Company has granted unsecured loan to its fellow subsidiary which is also a party
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. The loan and interest
thereon are repayable on demand. Management informs us that Company has not
demanded repayment of any such loan or interest during the year and thus there is no
default on the part of the party to whom the money has been lent. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the
said loan are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the
parties covered under Section 185 of the Act. The Company has complied with the
provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made or loans or guarantee
or security provided to the parties covered in the section, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act,
any other relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed thereunder.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section
148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph
3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services tax, duty of
Customs, and other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited during
the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us
company did not have any dues on account of duty of Exyoise, sales tax and Cess.
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Provident fund, Employees® State Insurance, Income-tax,
Goods and Services tax. duty of Customs, and other material statutory dues were
in arrears as at %1 March 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of
Income-tax, Goods and Service tax, and duty of Customs which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute,

The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks,
government or debentureholders during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the
order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company did not raise any money by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term
loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to
the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
fraud by the Company or any instances of fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such
case by the management.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is
not a Nidhi Company as prescribed under Section 406 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the
Act, and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financjal Statements as
required under the Ind AS,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our €xamination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company is not required to be registered under Section
45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

For BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 10] 248W/W-100022

Rgis

Rajesh Mehra

Mumbai Partner
21 May 2019 Membership No: 103145
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the interna] financial controls with reference to financial statements of Scrabble
Entertainment Limited (“the Company”) as of 3 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.,

[n our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as

Management’s Res onsibility for Internal Financial Controls
g p y

maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to

as “the Act™).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to CXpress an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and whether such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a materia weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

statements,
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
Mmanagement and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use. or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial slatements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
slatements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

el

—

Rajesh Mehra
Mumbai Partner
21 May 2019 Membership No: 103145



<Crapble Entertainment Limited
Balance sheet as at 37 March 2019

ASSETS
Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiaries and associates

Financial Assets

(i) Loans receivables

(ii)y Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Total Non-Current Assets (A)

Current Assets

Inventories
Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(i) Trade receivables
(iiiy Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii} above
(v) Loans receivables
(vi) Other financial assets
Other current assets
Total Current Assets (B)
Total Assets (A+B)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

a) Equity share capital

b) Other equity
Total Equity (C)
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
Financial liabilities

i) Other financial liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

Provisions
Total Non-current Liabilities (D)

Current Liabilities

Financial liabilities
(i} Trade payables

a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

small enterprises
(i) Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities (E)
Total Liabilities (D+E)
Total Equity And Liabilities (C+D+E)

Significant accounting policies

Notes

E-N

@ ~N e,

10
11

12

13
14

15
17
18

16

16
15
17
18

31 March 2019

Rs. in lacs
31 March 2018

1,055.81 2,004.01
3,590.21 1,190.24
263,70 378.45
53.14 187.18
630.90 600.79
929.94 872.47
6,523.70 5,233.14
161.14 192.56
1,967.63 3,822.41
1,682.30 1,154.14
142.58 367.93

- 728.94
4,018.39 2,314.46
951.98 699.56
320.45 411.51
9,144.47 9,691.51
15,668.17 14,924.65
76.84 76.84
10,838.28 8,508.62
10,915.712 8,585.46
598.89 406.13
132.23 175.19
10.17 5.74
741.29 587.06
2,623.75 3,915.27
87338 1,286.92
481.86 512.56
32.77 37.38
4,011.76 5,752.13
4,753.05 6,339.19
15,668.17 14,924.65

The accompanying notes 1 to 41 are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

\@\—*—:é;;u
Rajesh Mehra

Partner i
Membership No: 103145

Mumbai
Date: May 21, 2019

(=

pil Agarwal
irector
DIN: 00024378

Date: May 21, 2019

il Agra
Director

DINN)ID

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of
Scrabble Entertainment Limited

T

ah

Company Secretary
Membership No. A25458

ral
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 March 2019

Particulars

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income (1)

Expenses

Cost of consumables and spares
Purchases of digital cinema equipment
Purchases of lamp and spares

Changes in inventories of digital cinema equipments
Changes in inventories of lamp and spares
Virtual print fees sharing

Other operating direct cost

Employee benefits expense

Other expenses

Total Expenses (ll)

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation (EBITDA) (I} - (I}

Depreciation and amortization expense
Finance cost
Finance income

Profit before tax

Tax Expense:
Current tax
Deferred tax

Total Tax Expense

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income (‘OCI')
(i) Items that will not be rectassified to profit or loss
a) Remeasurement of the defined benefits plans
(i) Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Total Comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share (Face value of share of Rs. 10 each)
(i) Basic
(ii) Diluted

Significant accounting policies

Notes

19
20

21
21
21
21
21
21
21
22
23

24
25

26
26

2

31 March 2019

Rs. in lacs
31 March 2018

8,128.74 9,987.03
63.33 51.43
8,192.07 10,038.46
5.24 24.32
265.22 438.48
1,362.56 633.33
5.26 (48.51)
36.43 39.08
1,564.06 3,829.67
730.39 976.53
538.42 560.17
561.62 909.63
5,069.20 7,362.70
3,122.87 2,675.76
805.20 1,011.52
43.08 122.24
(912.81) (3,849.97)
3,187.40 5,391.97
891.85 1,380.00
(31.11) (33.45)
860.74 1,346.55
2,326.66 4,045.42
4.00 (0.96)
(1.00) 0.33
2,329.66 4,044.79
302.80 526.48
302.80 526.48

The accompanying notes 1 to 41 are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

ForBSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

o)

—

Rajesh Mehra
Partner
Membership No: 103145

Mumbai
Date: May 21, 2019

DIN: 00024378

Date: May 21, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Scrabble Entertainment Limited

£~

Company Secretary
Membership No. A25458



Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2019

Cash flow from operating activitles

31 March 2019

Rs. in lacs
31 March 2018

Profit before tax 3,187.40 5,391.97
Adjustment to reconclle profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortization expense 805,20 1,011.52
Provision for doubtful debts 86.00 114.31
Sundry balances written back (100.75) (14.10}
Unrealised foreign exchange loss (net) (1.17) 2.35
Profit on sale of fixed assets (0.28) -
Gain on sale of current investments (net) (59.03) -
Fair valuation gain financial instruments - FVTPL (89.18) (85.50)
Interest expense on term loan > 9.04
Interest Income on financial assets carried at amortised cost (4.45) (6.58)
Interest expenses on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 41.58 111.93
Interest income (432.94) (285.08)
Dividend income (327.21) (3,472.81)
Operating profit before working capltal changes 3,105.17 2,777.06
Movements in working capital :
(Decrease) in trade payables (1,291.52) (253.86)
(Decrease) in other financial current liabilities (432.19) (132.09)
Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities 70.05 (103.99)
Increase / (decrease) in non current provisions 3.50 (1.05)
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions (0.61) (2.97)
Increase / (decrease) in other non current financial liabilities 192.76 (799.94)
Decrease / (increase) in other non current liabilities (42.96) 104.18
Increase / (decrease) in trade receivables (514.16) 308.16
Increase in current financial assets loans 161.07 675.15
Increase in current other financial assets 32.89 222.83
Increase in other current assets 91.06 168.81
Increase / (decrease) in inventorles 31.42 (116.63)
Increase / (decrease) in non current financial assets loan 119.20 (54.22)
Decrease in other non current assets 1.66 20,99
Cash generated from operations 1,627.34 2,812.42
Direct laxes paid (nel of refunds) (950.98) (1,464.78)
Net cash flow from operating activitles (A) 576.36 1,347.64
Cash flows from Investing actlvities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment, including intangible and capital advances (26.47) (49.46)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 148,01 251.05
Payment of purchase consideration for purchase of subsidiary shares (2,399.97) -
Purchase of current invesiments (10,273.61) (10,751.25)
Proceeds from sale / redemption of current Investments 12,277.51 9,635.00
Maturily of / (investment in) bank deposits (with original maturity more than 3 months) (net) 852.31 (230.90)
Loan to relaled party (net) (1,865.00) (405,00)
Interest received 158,30 93.07
Dividends received 327.21 347281
Net cash flow (used In) / from Investing actlvities (B) (801.71) 2,015.32
Cash flows from / (used in) financing activitles
Paymenlt of interim dividend - (3,088.92)
Repayment of long-term borrowings - (297.51)
Interes! paid - (40.00)
Net cash flow (used In)/ from financing activities (C) - (3,426.43)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) {225.35) (63.47)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 367.93 431.40
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the perlod 14258 367.93
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.72 1.59
Balance with banks:
- on current accounts 141.86 361.79
- on EEFC accounts - 4.55
Total cash and cash equlvalents (refer note 12) 142.58 367.93
Summary of significant accounting policles 2
Notes:

1. The above Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" set out in IND AS - 7 * Cash Flow Statements”

The accompanying noles 1to 41 are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

ForBSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Scrabble Entertainment Limited
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2019

A. Equity Share Capital (refer note 14)

Rs. in lacs
Particular 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balance at the beginning of year 76.84 76.84
Changes in equity share capital during the reporling year - -
Balance at the end of reporting year 76.84 76.84

B. Other equity

Rs. in lacs
Reserves and Surplus
. Employee
Particular Securities Caplta_l Retained Share Options Total
Premium Reserve  "ooemption Earnings Outstanding
reserve

Balance as of 1 April 2017 3,370.56 399.99 3,781.88 0.32 7.652.75
Profit for the year - - 4,045.42 - 4,045.42
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (0.63) - (0.63)
Total Comprehensive Income 3,370.56 399.99 7,826.67 0.32 11,597.54
Exercise of stock options - - 0.32 (0.32) -
Dividend paid - - (3,088.92) - (3,088.92)
As at 31 March 2018 3,370.56 399.99 4,738.07 (0.00) 8,508.62
Profit for the year - - 2,326.66 - 2,326.66
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 3.00 - 3.00
As at 31 March 2019 3,370.56 399,99 7,067.73 (0.00) 10,838.28

The accompanying notes 1 to 41 are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached

ForBSR &Co. LLP
Charlered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

1. Corporate information

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 21 May
2019.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Statement of compliance

These Ind AS financial statements of the Company-have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant
amendment rules issued thereafter as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"), the
relevant provisions of the Act, as applicable, and were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on May 21, 2019.

2.2 Basis of Preparation:

These financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees in lacs, except were mentioned otherwise,

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating
cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division Il of Schedule IIl to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the

statements, the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period and the disclosures
relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. Although these estimates are based on
the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes different from the estimates. Difference between actual results and estimates
are recognized in the period in which the results are known or materialise. Estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Ary revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current
and future periods.

(i) Judgements:

in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, the management makes judgements, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

(ii) Estimates and Assumptions:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of asset and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and.estimates on parameters
available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances__./,ai;i_j@_ assumptions about future




Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control
of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

« Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment:

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the
economic life of an asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed by the management
periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged
over the remaining useful life of the assets.

« Defined Benefit Obligation:

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases
and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

+ Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets:

Availability of future taxable profit against which the tax losses carried forward can be used as disclosed in
note 2.4(l) below.

« Recognition and Measurement of Provisions and Contingencies:
Key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of outflow of resources as disclosed in Note 2.4(n) below.
. Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments:

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be
measured based on guoted prices in active markets, their fair values are measured using valuation techniques
including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
market where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values. Judgement includes consideration of input, such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies:
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE):

PPE are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost
comprises the purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalisation criteria are met and directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.

Subsequent casts are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance cost are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss during the period in which they are incurred.

ltems of stores and spares that meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and
depreciated over their useful life. Otherwise, such items are classified as inventories.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a PPE are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognized.

| "
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

(b) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life and is provided
on a straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed in Schedule 1 of the Companies Act, 2013, or as
estimated by the management. The identified components are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining
asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset. When significant parts of PPE are required to be replaced
atintervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.

The useful life of PPE is the period over which PPE is ‘expected to be available for use by the Company.

The Company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its property, plant and equipment;

Type of Assets Useful lives (years)
Plant and Equipment comprising of Exhibition 6-7
_Equipment and Other Equipments
Computer and Printers
Furniture and Fixtures
_Office Equipment
Vehicles

Qlonw|w

Except computers, useful life of above property, plant and equipment are different from those prescribed under
Schedule II. These rates are based on evaluation of useful life by internal technical expert.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

l.easehold improvements are written off over the period of lease or over a period of 4 years, whichever is lower,
(c) Business Combination

The Company accounts for its business combinations under acquisition method of accounting. Acquisition related
costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. The acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities that meet the condition for recognition are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition
date.

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under common control are accounted
at historical cost under pooling of interest method. The difference between any consideration given and the
aggregate historical carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are recorded in shareholders’
equity.

(d) Impairment of Non-financial assets

Assessment for impairment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that a non-
financial asset may be impaired. Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted
at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing off the asset.
The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The impairment loss is recognized if the recoverable
amount of the CGU is higher than its value in use or fair value less cost to sell. Impairment losses are immediately
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(e) Leases

Operating lease :

Where the Company is the lessee

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of.ownership of the leased item,

are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized @g@gqs‘;&a\\the Statement of
profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. RN,




Scrabble Entertainment Limited ,
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

Where the Company is the lessor

Assets subject to operating leases are included in property, plant and equipment. Lease income is recognised in
the Statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation are
recognised as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage
costs, etc. are recognised immediately in the Statement of profit and loss.

() inventories

Inventories comprise of traded goods, stores and spares and are valued at cost or at net realisable value
whichever is lower. Cost of traded goods, stores and spares is determined on weighted average basis. Cost
include all costs of purchases, conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Stores and spares, which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment, are
accounted as inventories. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(g) Revenue recognition
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing digital cinema service.

Effective 1 April 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognised. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115
using the cumulative effect method. The effect of initially applying this standard is recognised at the date of initial
application (i.e. 1 April 2018). The standard is applied retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed as at
the date of initial application and the comparative information in the profit or loss is not restated.

The impact of adoption of Ind AS 115 on the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2019 is not material.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

Income from services and sale of goods

e Virtual print fees (VPF) received from distributors of the films from D-Cinema and E-Cinema is recognized in
the period in which the services are rendered.
« Registration fee is recognised in the period in which the services are rendered.

. Revenue from maintenance service fees is recognised on time proportion basis for the period falling in the
reporting period.

. Revenue from commission and technical service income is recognised in period in which services are
rendered. '

« Revenue from sale of goods is recognized upon transfer of control to buyers and no uncertainty exists
regarding the amount of consideration that will be derived from sale of goods.

. Lease rental income on equipment is recognised as mentioned in note 2.3 (e) above

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts,
service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any. Revenue also excludes taxes
collected from customers.

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers based on nature of services.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract

assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) whenAhere, iélﬂhggnditional right to
receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms, ;?;j.-./':"/"“"m Y
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues.

Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period and none of the contracts include a financing
element.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements. The
Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which the transaction
price could be allocated to a new performance obligation or transaction price of an existing obligation could
undergo a change.

In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Other than above Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rate applicable. Interest income is included in the finance income in the statement of profit and
loss.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established.
(h) Foreign currency transaction
Foreign currency transactions and balances
(i) Initial recognition

On initial recognition, transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are recorded in the
functional currency (i.e. Indian Rupees), by applying to the foreign currency amount, the spot exchange rate
between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences
arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

(ii)) Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date,
Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

(iii) Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translation of such monetary items of
Company at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year or reported in
previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

(i) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on
initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. e
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or
less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks
which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCYI)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held
within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and selling financial assets.

The Company has made an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of equity
investments not held for trading in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in
statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments recognised by the Company aré recognised at the proceeds received net of
direct issue cost. '

Impairment of Financial Assets:

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. In case of trade receivables, the Company follows the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS
109 — Financial Instruments - for recognition of impairment loss allowance. The application of simplified approach
does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk of trade receivables. The Company calculates the
expected credit losses on trade receivables, using a provision matrix on the basis of its historical credit loss
experience.

Financial guarantee contracts:

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition of Financial Assets:

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. ,;,/?fcr;
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and
only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities:

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability de-recognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity Investments:

All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value, the
Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL.

The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity
instrument is recognized as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to
measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at
FVOC]| are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of
Profit and Loss on disposal. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other
income’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(j) Fair Value'Measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as investments (other than equity investments in Subsidiaries
and Associates) at fair value at each balance sheet date. .The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole;

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities, that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period. N




Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as
derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement,

such as assets held for dispesal in discontinued operations.

(k) Employee benefits:

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contribution towards provident fund to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for
qualifying employees. [n case of provident fund, both the employee and the Company make monthly contribution
equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee’s salary or a fixed monthly contribution. The monthly

contribution payable by the Company is charged to the Statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Company provides for gratuity using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried

out at each Balance sheet date, based on legislations as enacted as at the Balance sheet date. The

obligation is

measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the
present value of the obligation under defined penefit plan are based on the market yields on Government

securities as at the Balance sheet date.

The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its Balance sheet as an asset or liability.
Gains or losses through re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability / (asset) are recognized in other

comprehensive income. The actual return of portfolio of plan assets, in excess of yields computed by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation are recognized in other comprehensive income. The
effects of any plan amendments are recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Past service cost is recognized
immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested or amortized on a straight-line basis over the

average period until the benefits become vested.

The gratuity obligation recognized in the Balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any
asset resulting from the calculation is limited to the present value of available refunds and reductions in future
contributions to the scheme. The gratuity plan is managed by a Life Insurance Corporation of India to which

contributions are made by the Company.

Other long-term employee benefits

Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation at year end. The actuarial
valuation is done as per projected unit credit method. The Company presents the compensated absences as a
current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for

12 months after the reporting date.
Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense on accrual basis.

() Current Income taxes and deferred tax

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be
paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws use to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Deferred income taxes
reflect the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year

and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance

sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of

any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be

available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be

utilised, except: When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary d,iﬁg“r’e'\r_ic'g_'s;‘%}ﬁsgf from the initial
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recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when the same relate to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax relating to such items are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(m) Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders: share split; and
reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(n) Provisions and Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows to net present value using an appronriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when the product is sold or service provided to the customer,
Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is revised
annually, A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a
contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not
disclosed as contingent liabilities.

(o) Employee share based payment:

The Parent Company has floated various Share incentive plans to enable its affiliated entities to attract, reward,
retain and motivate its employees.

Share-based compensation expense is recognized over the requisite service period for awards of equity
instruments to employee based on the grant date fait value of those awards expected to ultimately vest.
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(p) Borrowing cost

Borrowing cost. includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as
an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

(q) Measurement of EBITDA

As per Guidance Note on Division II- Ind AS Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013, the Company has elected to
present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as @ separate line item on the face
of the statement of profit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit from continuing
operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance
costs, finance income and tax expense.

2 4 Standards issued but not effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"), through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019
and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified the following new and
amendments to Ind ASs which the Company has not applied as they are effective from 1 April 2019:

Ind AS 116- Leases

On 30 March 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116 which introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than
twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard — i.e. lessors continue to classify leases
as finance or operating leases. Ind AS 116 replaces existing leases guidance including Ind AS 17 Leases where
ihe operating lease expenses are charged to the Statement of profit and loss account.

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. The standard permits two possible
methods of transition;

(1) Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

(2) Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard
recognized at the date of initial application.

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:

. its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at
lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application or

. An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related
to that lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately pefore the date of initial application.

The Company has started an initial assessment of the potential impact of Ind AS 116 on its financial statements.
The key change upon adoption of the standard will be balance sheet recognition, as the recognition of lease
expense on income statement will be similar to current accounting. The Company will adopt the new leasing
standard usinga modified retrospective transition method as of the beginning of the period of adoption; therefore,
will not adjust the balance sheet for comparative periods but will record a cumulative effect adjustment to retained
earnings on 1 April 2019,

The Company of estimated the adoption will result in a right-of-use asset of Rs. 399 Lacs. The Company does not
believe the standard will materially impact the income statement or have a notable i gl




Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2019

Ind AS 12 Income taxes (amendments relating to income tax consequences of dividend and uncertainty over
income tax treatments)

The amendment relating to income tax consequencec of dividend clarify that an entity shall recognise the income
tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the
entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. The Company does not expect any impact from this
pronouncement. It is relevant to note that the amendment does not amend situations where the Company pays a
tax on dividend which is effectively a portion of dividends paid to taxation authorities on behalf of shareholders.
Such amount paid or payable to taxation authorities continues to be charged to equity as part of dividend, in
accordance with Ind AS 12

The amendment to Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to the determination of
taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty
over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. It outlines the following: (1) the entity has to use judgement, to
determine whether each tax treatment should be considered separately or whether some can be considered
together. The decision should be based on the approach which provides better predictions of the resolution of the
uncertainty (2) the entity is to assume that the taxation authority will have full knowledge of all relevant information
while examining any amount (3) entity has to consider the probability of the relevant taxation authority accepting
the tax treatment and the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates would depend upon the probability. The Company does not expect any significant impact of
the amendment on its financial statements.

Ind AS 19 — Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments clarify that if a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, it is mandatory that the current
service cost and the net interest for the period after the re-measurement are determined using the assumptions
used for the remeasurement. In addition, amendments have been included to clarify the effect of a plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement on the requirements regarding the asset ceiling. The Company does not
expect this amendment to have any significant impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 — Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination rights in order to allow
measurement at amortised cost (or, depending on the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive
income) even in the case of negative compensation payments. The Company does not expect this amendment to
have any impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Costs
The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its

intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating
the capitalisation rate on general borrowings. The Company does not expect any impact from this amendment.
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Scrabble Entertainment Limited
Notes to financials statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

4. Investment in subsidiaries, assc

Rs. in lacs

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Unquoted equity Instruments (at cost)
investment in subsidiarles

750,000 (31 March 2018: 750,000) Ordinary Shares of USD 1 each at par fully paid up in Scrabble

Enterlainment (Mauritius) Limited 400.09 40009

593,142 (31 March 2018: Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up in Scrabble Digital Limited (refer note 40) 2,798.97 .

5.000 (31 March 2018: 5,000) Equity Shares in Scrabble Digital inc. 337.59 337.59

Investment in step down subsidiary

300 (31 March 2018: 300) Equity Shares of AED 1,000 each at par fully paid up in Scrabble Entertainment DMCC 40.83 40.83

Investment in associates

Nil (31 March 2018: 197,714) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up in Scrabble Digital Limited (refer note 40) = 399.00

100 (31 March 2018: 100) Ordinary shares of AED 1000 each at par fully paid up in Scrabble Digital DMCC 1273 12.73
3,590.21 1,190.24

5. Financial assets - Loans receivables Rs. In lacs

Long-term Short-term

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

31 March 2018

31 March 2018

Unsecured (Considered Good}

Security deposil to related parties (refer note 30) 212.50 32822 136.90 308.85
Security deposil to others 51.20 50.23 11.49 0.61
263.70 378.45 148.39 305.46
Loan and advances to related parties
Loans 1o related parties (refer note 40) - - 3,870.00 2.006.00
2632.70 378.45 4,018.39 2,314.46
6. Other financial assets Rs. in lacs
Non-current Current
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 0.37 11.04 - 50,55
Unbilled revenue - . 203.84 236.73
Interest accrued on loan to related party (refer note 30) - - 748.14 412,28
Fixed deposil with remaining maturity more than 12 month (refer nole 12) 5277 176.14 - -
53.14 187.18 951.98 699.56
7. Deferred tax assets (net) Rs. In lacs

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

‘A) Deferred Tax Assets

Properly, Plant and Equipment and intangible Assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation / 480.83 389.79
amartization charged for financial reporting
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 126,99 161.95
impact of expenditure charged to the statemenl of profit and loss in the current year but allowed for tax purposes on payment
basis 58.49 73.48
Net deferred tax assets 666.31 625.22
B} Deferred Tax Liability
Fair value of investment (35.42) (24.43)
Net deferred tax liabilities (35.42) (24.43)
Deferred Taxes (net) 630.90 600.79
Rs. in lacs
Movement during the year ended 31 March 2018 Recognized in the|  Recognized in Other
Balance as at| statement of Profit Comprehensive Balance as at
31 March 2017 and Loss Income 31 March 2018
Deferred tax assets /(liabilities)
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: Impact of difference
between lax depreciation and depreciation / amortization charged for financial
reporting 358.03 31.78 - 389.81
Provision for Doubtful Debt and advances 144.87 17.07 . 161.94
Othets 54.10 (15.40) 0.33 49.03
Total 567.00 33.45 0.33 600.79
Rs. in lacs
Movement during the year ended 31 March 2019 Recognized inthe|  Recognized in Other|
Balance as at| statement of Profit| Comprehensive Balance as at
31 March 2018 and Loss Income 31 March 2019
Deferred tax assets /(liabilities)
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: impact of difference
belween tax depreciation and depreciation | amortization charged for financial
reporting 389.81 91.05 480.86
Provision for Doubtful Debt and advances 161.94 (34.97) - 126.98
Others 49.03 (24.97) (1.00) 23.06
Total 600.78 3111 {1.00) 530.90




Scrabble Entertainment Limited
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Rs. in lacs

The major components of income tax expense for the year are as under:

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

il Income tax recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current tax

In respect of current year 891.85 1,380.00
Deferred tax:
Attributabile to origination of temporarily differences (31.11) (33.45)
lncome tax expense recognised in the Statemant of Profit and Loss B60.74 1,346.55
ii) Income tax expense recognised in OCI
Deferred lax expense on remeasuroments of defined benefit plans 1.00 (0.33)
Income tax expense recognised in OCI 1.00 {0.33)
Reconclliation of tax expense and the accounting profit for the year is as under: Rs. In lacs
31 March 2018 31 March 2018
Profit before tax 3,187.40 5,391.97
income tax expense calculated at Corporate tax rate at 29.120% 34.608%
Computed tax expenses 928.17 1,866.056
Impact on account of:
Effect of expenses not allowed for tax purpose 1.97 15.68
Effect of Income which is taxed as special rates (dividend received from foreign subsidiaries) (20.38) (435.38)
Effect of Income that is exempted from {ax (56.95) (135.87)
Other 8.93 35.74
Tax expense as per Statement of Profit and Loss 861.74 1,346.22
8. Other assets {Unsecured, Considered good unless otherwise stated) Rs. In lacs
Non-current Current
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Frepaid expenses 7.59 5.41 31.16 45.85
Deferred lease rental - 3.84 - 3.99
Deferred VPF Sharing Expenses - - 8.17 14 60
7.59 9.26 39.33 64.44
Advances to vendors
Considered good - - 8.94 28.84
Credit impaired - - - 9.89
- - 8.94 38.73
|_ess ; Allowance for doubtful advances - - (9.89)
- - 8.94 28.84
Advance income-lax (net ol provision for taxation) 922.35 863.22 - -
Loans and advances lo employees - - 0.48 0.44
Balances wilh statutory and goveinment authorities - - 28.46 23.66
GST credil receivable . - 242.24 294.13
922.35 863.22 28112 347.07
§29.94 872.47 320.45 411.61
9. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value) Rs. in lacs

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

- Traded Goods

Digital cinema equipment 50.22 55.48
Lamps 64,27 100,70
Consumables and spares 46.65 36.38
161.14 192.56
10. investments Rs. in lacs
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Rupees Rupees
Carried at FVTPL
Unquoted mutual funds
Investment in mutual funds 1,967.63 3,822.41
1.967.63 3.822.41
Aggreqate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof . -
Aqaregate amount of unquoted investments 1,967.63 3,822.41
Agareqate amount of impairment in value of investments - -
11.Trade receivables (unsecured) Rs. in lacs
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Considered good 1,582.30 1,154.14
Credil impaired 436.08 550.47
2,018.38 1,704.61
Less Allowance for doubtful lrade receivable (436.08) (550.47)
1,582.30 1,154.14

For delails pertaining to related party receivable (refer note 30)
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12, Cash and bank bal

Rs. in lacs

Non-current

Current

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks:

— On current accounts

— On EEFC accounls
Cash on hand

Other bank balances
~ Deposits with remaining maturity for less than 12 months
- Deposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months

- Margin money deposit with remaining maturity for less than 12 months
~ Margin money deposit with remaining maturity for more than 12 months

Amount disclosed under non-current financial assets (refer note 6)

Margin money deposits :

141.86 361.79
= 4.55
0.72 1.59

6.93 163.04

45.84 13.10

142,58 367.93

- 727.94

52.77 176.14

(52.77)

(176.14)

142.58 1,096.87

Margin money deposits are kept under lien for issuing bank quarantees to various State Governments 1o comply with the Sales Tax / VAT Registration formalities.

13. Share capital

Rs. in lacs

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Authorized share capital

1.000.000 (31 March 2018: 1,060,000) equity shares of Rs,10 each 100.00 100.00
104,300 (31 March 2018: 104,300 ) 6% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS) of Rs.1,150 each 1,199.45 1,199.45
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares

768,387 (31 March 2018: 768,387) equily shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 76.84 76.84
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 76.84 76.84
{a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity shares Rs. in lacs

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 768,387 76.84 768,387 76.84
Issued during the year - - - -
Oulstanding at the end of the year 768,387 76.84 768,387 76.84
(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Name of the shareholder 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
No. % holding in the No. % holding in the
___class _class
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
UFO Moviez India Limited (UFO) 768,387 100.00% 768,387 100.00%

Of the above, below shares are held by nominee

Name of Shareholders Shareholding
{No. of Shares)
Mr. Sanjay Gaikwad (As Nominee of UFO) 10
Mr. Kapil Agarwal (As Naminee of UFO) 10
Mr. Ashish Malushie (As Nominee of UFQ) 10
Mr_Rajesh Mishra (As Nominee of UFQ) 10
Mr._Pankaj Jaysinh {As Nominee of UFQ) 10
Mr_Vishnu Patel (As Nominee of UFD) 10
Mr._Sushil Agrawal (#s Nominee of UFQ) 10
Total 70

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members,

(c) Shares held by holding company

the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

Out of equily shares issued by lhe Company, shares held by its holding company are as below :
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Rs. in lacs
Name of the shareholder 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
UFO Moviez India Limited, the holding company
768,387 (31 March 2018: 768,387) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 76.84 76.84

{d) Terms / rights attached to equity shares

Voting Rights
Each holder of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per equity share is entilled to one vote per equity share.

Rights pertaining to repayment of capital

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts,
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Terms/ Rights attached to preference shares

The Company during the year ended 31st March, 2014 redeemed 6% Optionally Converlible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS) having par value of Rs. 1,150 each
1ssued lo the Investor

The OCRPS shall rank senior to all other issued and outstanding securities of the Company including Equity Shares,

Dividend Rights:

The OCRPS holders have right to receive dividend in preference to all other shareholders as and when declared by the Board of Directors.

{e) Terms of conversion/ redemption of OCRPS

The OCRPS shall be redeemed at the oplion of the Investor in three equal installments at the end of third, fourih and fifth year from date of subscription at par

The Investor shall have the option to require the Company to redeem all the OCRPS at any time prior to the maturity date under certain specified conditions as per the
Shareholders’ Agreement

The OCRPS are convertible into equity shares, at the option of the investor at any time prior to expiry of one year from the date of each subscription in the ratio of 1:1,

(e) Shares reserved for issue under options
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the Parent Company, please refer note 28

14. Other Equity Rs. in lacs
. 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Securities premium

Balance as per the last financial statements 3,370.56 3,370.56
Add: premium on Issue of Equity Shares - -
Closing Balance 3,370.56 3,370.56
Capital redemption rescrve

Balance as per lhe lasl financial statements 399.99 399.99
Add: Transferred from surplus in the Statement of profit and loss on redemption of Preference Shares - -
Closing Balance 399,99 399.99
Emplovee stock options outstanding

Balance as per the last financial slatements - 0.32
Less. Transfer lo Slalement of profil and loss - {0.32)
Closing Balance - -

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Balance as per lasl financial statements 4,738.07 3,781.88
Add’ Employee Stock options expired transfer - 0.32

4,738.07 3,782.20
Profit for the year 2,329.66 4,044.79
Profit available for appropriation 7,067.73 7.826.99

Less: Appropriation

Interim equily dividend [amount per share Rs. Nil (31 March 2018: Rs.182)} - (3,088.92)
Net Surplus in the statement of profit and loss 7,067.73 4,738.07
Total reserves and surplus 10,838.28 8,608.62
15, Other financial liabilities Rs. in lacs
Non-current Current

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Deposits from customers 598.89 406,13 873.38 1,265.16
Payable for purchase of property, plant and equipment = - - 21.76
598.89 406.13 873.38 1,286.92
16. Trade Payable Rs. in lacs
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

a} Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 33) - .
b} Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,623.75 3,915.27
2,623.76 3,915.27

For detarls periaining to related parly payable (refer note 30)
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17. Other liabllities Rs. In lacs
Non-current Current
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Advance from customers - - 333.06 322.32
Deferred revenue on AMC services 126.88 169.84 86.34 60.10
Deferred lease rental revenue 5.35 5.35 3.78 33.26
Deferred VPF revenue - - 32,21 40.59
Stalutory dues * = - 26.48 56.29
132.23 175.19 481.86 512.56

* Statutory dues payable includes

Tax deducted at source 23.01 52,85

Employees - Provident Fund 1.67 1,70

Employer - Provident Fund Payable 1.71 1.74

Profession Tax Empioyee 0.09 0.01

26.48 56.30
18. Provisions Rs, In lacs
Long-term Short-term
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Provision for emplovee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer nole 27) 9.24 574 - -
Provision for compensated absences - - 32.05 30.71
Provision - Others:
Provision for Warranlies 0.93 - 0.72 6.67
10.17 5.74 3277 37.38

Provision for Warranty

A provision is recognized for expected warranty claims on products sold during the year, based on past experience of the level of repairs and returns, The table below gives
information about movement in warranty provisions. The product are generally covered under the warranty period ranging from 1 year to & years.

Rs. in lacs

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

At the beginning of the year 6.67 19.70
Arising during the year 1.36 -

Ulilized during the year (6.38) (13.03)

At the end of the year 1.65 6.67

Current portion 0.72 6.67
Non-current portion 0.93 -
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19. Revenue from operations

Rs. in lacs

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Sale of services

Virtual Print Fee - D-Cinema 4,636.51 6,795.77
Lease Rental Income - E-Cinema 28.65 31.58
Lease Rental Income - D-Cinema 644,52 825.93
Lease Rental Income - 3D 58.82 83.83
Maintenance service fee 331.09 280.80
Commission income 78.36 375.71
Technical service income - 15.02
Freight income 91.09 85.71
5,869.04 8,494.35
Sale of products
Lamp sale 1,048.27 655.72
Sale of Digital Cinema Equipment 328.26 590.25
Sale of spares 782.42 232.61
2,158.95 1,478.58
Other operating income
Sundry balances written back 100.75 14.10
100.76 14.10
8,128.74 9,987.03
20. Other income* Rs. in lacs
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Profit on sale of fixed assets 0.28 -
Miscellaneous income 31.64 41,68
Foreign exchange gain (net) 31.41 -
Financial obligation - 89.75
63.33 51.43

* Other income excludes income earned by way of interest, dividend, gain on sale of current investments, which has been disclosed under the head finance income (refer note

25)
21. Operating direct costs Rs. in lacs
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Repairs and maintenance exhibition eguipment 227.58 312.29
Content processing charges 214.86 248,44
Virtual print fee sharing 1,564.06 3,829.67
Rent on equipments 287.95 415.80
A 2,294.45 4,806.20
Consumables and spares
Inventories at the beginning of the year 36,38 54.70
Add : Purchases 15.51 6.00
Less : Inventories at the end of the year {46.65) (36.38)
B 5.24 24.32
Purchase of digital cinema equipment (o3 265.22 438.48
Purchase of Lamps and Spares D 1,362.56 633.33
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of digital cinema equipment
Inventories at the beginning of the year 55.48 6.97
Inventories at the end of the year (50.22) (55.48)
E 5.26 {48.51)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of lamps and spares
Inventories at the beginning of the year 100.70 139.78
Inventories at the end of the year (64.27) (100.70)
F 36.43 39.08
AtoF 3,969.18 5892.90
22. Employee benefils expense Rs. in facs
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Salaries, wages and bonus 491.27 500.60
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 27) 21.74 21.81
Gratuity expense (refer Note 27) 7.69 7.63
Compensated absences (refer Note 27) 474 4.19
Staff welfare expenses 12.98 25.94
538.42 560.17
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23. Other expenses Rs. in lacs
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Eleclricily charges 16.26 19.08
Lease renlal expenses 2.20 8.07
Freight and forwarding charges 85.38 144.07
Rent 148.47 151.36
Rates and taxes 2.18 29.78
Insurance 23.08 28.72
Repairs and mainienance 5.08 20.84
Advertising and sales promotion 3.89 560
Commission and brokerage 29.81 94.30
Travelling and conveyance 19.46 51.37
Communication costs 5.1 14.30
Printing and stationery 3.50 4,53
Legal, professional and consuiltancy charges 91.40 138.53
Directors sitling lees including commission 13.25 475
Payment lo auditor (refer note below) 8.06 23.64
Foreign exchange loss (net) - 2.35
Bad debts / advances written off 200.38 5.69
Less: Provision utilised (200.38) - (5.69)
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 86.00 114.31
Miscellaneous expenses 18.50 54.03
561.62 909.63
Payment to auditor Rs. in lacs
31 March 2018 31 March 2018
As auditor;
Audit fee 5.00 15.50
Tax audil fee 1.00 2.50
In other capacity: -
Olher services (certification fees) 2.00 4.50
Oul of pockel expenses 0.06 1.14
8.06 23.64
24, Finance cost Rs. in lacs
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Interest on
Term loans - 9.04
Inleres| expenses on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 41.58 111.93
Bank charges 1.50 1.27
43.08 122.24
25. Finance Income Rs. in lacs
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
interest income on
Bank deposils 43.10 68.55
Others 389.84 216.53
Financial assets carried at amortised cost 4.45 6.58
Dividend income (refer note 30)
from currenl investments 41.50 121.26
from associate 285.71 251.08
from subsidiary/slep down subsidiary - 3,100.49
Gain on sale of current investments (net) 59.03 -
Fair valuation gain financial instruments (FVTPL) 89.18 85.50

912.81 3,849.97
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26, Earnings per share (EPS)

The 1ol 4 reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diuted EPS compulations: Rs. In lacs
Particular 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Basic
Nel profit afler tax as per slalement of profit and loss 2,326.66 4,045 42
Weighled average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS 768,387 768,387
Earning per share (Rs.) 302.80 526.48
Diluted
Nel profit for calculation of diluted EPS 2,326,668 4,045.42
Weighted average number of equily shares in calculaling basic EPS 768,387 768,387
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (including dilution) 768,387 768,287
Earning per share (Rs.) 302,80 526 48
27. Gratulty and other post-employment benefit plans
a) Defined Contribution plan
The Company has recognised and included in Note 22 "contribution to provident fund and other funds” expenses towards the defined contribulion plan as under:
Rs. In lacs

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Contabulion to Provident fund (Government) 20.82 2070
Administration Charge - Proyident Fund 0.82 1.11

21.74 21.81

b} Defined benefit plan - Gratulty

The Company has a defined banafit gralully plan. Every employee who has compleled five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure al 15 days salary (last drawn salary) far each compleled year of service
The scneme Is funded wilh an nsurance Company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.

The following tables summaries the componenls of nel benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded slatus and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans

Change in the defined benefit obligation ("DBO") and fair value of plan assets as at 31 March 2019 Rs. in lacs
Defined benefit Falr value of Plan Benefit Liabllity

Particulars obligation assets
As at 1 April 2018 35.36 28062 574
Service Cosl 7.25 7.25
Past Service cost - . .
Net Interest Expense 2.66 265
inleresl Income 221 (2.21)
Recoanised In Statement of profit or loss 9.90 221 7.68
Benefil pald - =
Remeasurement aains/losses In other Comprehensive income

Actuarial changdes arising from Chanaes in financlal assumptions 0.96 - 0.96

Experigncs Adusimenls (4.96) - (4.88)
Recoanised in Other Comprehensive Income (4.00) - (4.00)
Sontrtbution by employer
As al 31 March 2019 41.26 31.83 9.43
Chanye in the defined benefit obllgation {"DBO"} and fair value of plan assets as at 31 March 2018 Rs.Inlacs
Particulars Deflned benefit Falr value of Plan Benefit Liabllity

abligation assets

As al 1 April 2017 26,75 2860 (2 85)
Service Cosl 712 - 712
Past Service cost 0.70 - 0.70
Nel Interest Expense 1.72 172
Interesl Income 1.91 (1.91)
Recoanised in Statement of profit or loss 9.54 1.91 7.83
Benefit paid (0.89) {0.89) -
Remgas ! qains/| in other Comprel Ive |

Return an plan assets (excluding amounts included In net interest expense) - - .

Acluanal changes arising lrom Chanaes in financial assumplions (1.77) - (1.77)

Exparance Adiusimenis 2.73 - 273
Recoanised In Other Comprehensive Income 0.96 - 0.96
Conlribulion by employer - . =
As at 31 March 2018 3536 28.62 574

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity as shown below:

Parliculars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Discount rate 7.30% 7.50%
Future Salary increase 8.00% 8.00%
Emplovee turnaver 13.10% 18%
Retirement age (vears) 58 58

8% 8%

Expecled returns on assets
Mortality rate

% of IALM 06-08

% of IALM 06-08

The eslimates of lulure salary increases considered in actuarial valualion, take account of inflation, seniority, promolion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment markel

The overall expected rate of return on assels is delermined based on the market prices prevailing on thal dale, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

A guantitative sensivity analysis for significant assumption Is shown below Rs. in lacs
Particulars DBO DBO

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Discount rate (-1%) 44.06 37 59
Discount rate (+1%) 38.44 3336
Salary Growth rate {-1%) 38.60 3335
Salary Growth rate (+1%) 43,78 37 56
Allrition rate (-0.5%) 42.35 3689
Allntion rale (+0 5%) 40,19 3424

Melhods and assumptions used in preparing sengilivity and their limilalions: The liability was projected by changing certain assumptions and thi assumptions have been caplured in

the lable above. This sensivities are based on change in one single assumption, other assumplions, being censtant
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The following payments are expected contributlons to the defined benefit plan In future years Rs. Inlacs
Parlculars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
wilh in the nexl 12 monlhs (next annual reparting period) 16.31 12.91
Total expected payments 16.31 12.91

The weighied average duration of the defined benefit plan obligatlon at the end of the reporting perlod is 7 years (31 March 2018: 6 years)

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the falr value of total plan assels are as follows:
Gratuily 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
100%

Iavesimants wilth insurar {Lite Insurance Corparation Limiled) 100%

Provision In respect of leave encashmenl benefils has been made based on acluarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary at the Balance sheel dale using Projected Unil Credit method. During (he year Rs
474 )lacs (31 March 2018: Rs 4.18 lacs) is recognised as an expense in the Slalement of profit and loss.

28, Employee stock option plans
During lhe year ended March 31, 2019, the Parenl company has two equily setlled ESOP Schemes viz.,, ESOP Scheme 2010 and ESOP Scheme 2014 in existence.
Employee Stock Option Scheme 2010 {'ESOP Scheme 2010')

The Holding Company UFO Moviez India Limited has floated various share-based payments schemes for gmployees of lhe Company, As per the scheme, during the year ended 31 March 2018, an employee stock
oplion plan (ESOP) was in exislence for the pariial period upto 7 Oclober, 2016. The relevant details of the plan is as below.

On March 01, 2010, Ihe Board of Directors of Holding Company UFO Moviez India Limited constituted a Compensation Commitlee and granted it the necessary authorily lo implement the ESOP Plan. The Compensalion
commitiee amongst other things, shall delermine the employees eligible for participation in the Plan, the number of options lo be granted and vesting period for the options. On 7 October, 2016, exercise period for all the
oplions issued to the employees of the Company under the Employee Stock Option Plan 2010 was elapsed and the Company forfeited all outstanding oplions. The olher relevant terms are as below :

The detalls of activity under the Sch 2010 are ised below:
31 March 2018 31 March 2018

Particulars Number of Options Weighted Average Number of Optlions Weighted Average

Exerclse Price (Rs.) Exercise Price (Rs.}
Qulslanding al the beginning of the year - - 2,677 400
Granted durina the vear - - - .
Exercised during the vear - 2 . =
Forfeited during ihe vear - - {2,577) -
Outslanding al the end of the vear - - - -
Exercisable at lhe end of lhe vear - - -
Weiahled average remaining contraclual life (in month) - - -
The key ption in Black Scholes Model used by Holding Company UFO Moviez India Limited for calculating fair value as on the date of grant are :

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Expecled Volatilily - 0.50%
Risk -Free interest rate - 8.10%
Weighled average share price - 387.71
Exercise Price (Rupees) = 600.00
Dividend Yield = .
Expecled life of oplions granted in years - 3.50
29, Leases

Operating lease : Company as lessee

The Company's significant leasing arrangements are in respecl of operaling leases taken for office premises, warehouses and digital equipment, These leases are cancellable operating lease agreemenls that are
renewable on a periodic basis al the option of bolh lhe lessor and the lesses. The initial tenure of the office Iease is generally for 11 to 36 monlhs. The initial tenure of the digital equipment on lease is generally for 36 lo
72 monihs

Rs. In lacs
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Lense payments for e vear 438.62 576.2
438.62 675.2
Fulure lease renlal expense will be recoanised in the Slatement of profit and loss of subsequent vears as follows:
: Rs. in lacs
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Due nol laler than one vear 116.23 112.03
Due later than one vear but not later than five vears 418.79 24115
Laler than five vears - .
535.02 353.18

Operating lease commitments — Company as lessor
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30, Related party dlsclosures
1. Names of related parties where transactions have taken place during the year

Namos of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Holding Company

Subsidiaries

Step Down Subsidiary

Associate of the Company

Associale of a Subsidiary Company

Key management personnel

Fellow Subsidiaries

UFO Moviez India Limiled

Scrabble Entertainment (Mauritius) Limited
Scrabble Digilal Limited w.e.f. 16 December 2018

Scrabble Entertainment DMCC
Scrabble Enterlainment Lebanon Sarl
Scrabble Entertainment (Israel) Limited

Scrabble Digilal Limited till 14 December 2018
Scrabble Digital DMCC

Scrabble Venlures LLC , USA
Scrabble Ventures, S. de R.L. de C .V, Mexico

Dr. Sunil Palil - Whole Time Diractor till 30th March 2019

Mr. S. Madhavan - Independent and Non execulive direclor
Ms. Lynn D'Souza - Independent and Non executive director
Ms, Urmi Shah - Company Secrelary

Valuable Digital Screens Private Limited

2. Detalls of transactions with related partles during the year Rs. In lacs
Sr.No [Particulars
Name of the Parties / Nature of Exp and Income  Marehi2o18 31 March 2016
1 Holding Company
UFO Movlez India Limited
A Income
i) Virtual print fee (D-Cinema) 420.04 374.34
i1} Rental income 88.26 86.81
ili) Reimbursement of expenses 177 -
iv) Miscellaneous Income - Renl (Warshouse) 16.82 16.27
B Expenses
i) Renl on equipments 287.96 415.80
1} Virlual print fee sharing 727.40 1,244 82
iny Renl 9.80 673
C Others
i} Securily deposit recsived 291.00 621.00
It} Security deposit paid 3.438 -
ili} Dividend paid - 3,08892
D Furchase of Proguct 26.85 26.33
Subsidiary of the Company (Including step down subsidiaries)
Dividend Income
i) Scrabble Entertainment DMCC - 26186
1) Scrabble Enterainment (Mauritius) Lid 8 2,838.63
B Miscellaneous Income - Rent (Warehouse)
Seratible Digilal Limited 0.93 -
C Content processing charges
Scrabble Digilal Limiled 92,90 -
3 Associale of the Company
Scrabble Digttal Limited
A Income
i) Miscellaneous Incoms - Renl (Warehouse) 1.63
i) Sale of products 4.14 19.62
liy AMC income & Installation 4,00 1.30
B Expenses
Conient processing charges 191.85 248 44
C Others
1} Dividend incoms 110.72 185.85
11} Security deposit received 0.56 -
D Scrabble Digltal DMCC
Others
Dividend income 174,98 8521
4 Remuneration to key manaqerial personnel
A Dr. Sunli Patit
1) Remuneration 59,84 60.00
Ii} Reimbursement of expenses 6.65 735
5 Independent and Non executive director
A Director Sitting Fees
i) Ms Lynn De Souza 7.26
i) Mc S Madhavan 6.00
6 Salary of Company Secretary
A Ms Urmi Shah 11.93
7 Fellow Subsidiaries
A Loan glven
Valuable Digital Screens Private Limited 1,865.00
B Interest income
Valuable Digital Screens Private Limiled 373,18
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3. Balance outstanding at the year end Rs. In lacs

SrNo  [Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Holding Company
A UFO Moviez Indla Limited
i} Amounl payable 487.13 102.26
ii) Securily deposit given 349,38 636.54
iii) Securily deposil received 3.64 364
2 Subsidlaries Companies
A Performance guarantee glven on behalf of subsidiarles
1) Scrabble Entertainment (Mauritius) Limiled 3,458.57 3.252.21
liy Scrabble Enterlainment DMCC (erstwhile known as Scrabble Enlertainment JLT) 3,458,57 3,252.21
iiiy Scrabble Enlefiainment {Mauritius) Ltd & Scrabble Entertainment DMCC (erstwhile known as Scrabble Enlertainment JLT) 13,834.26 13,008.82
B Scrabble Digital Limited
1} Amount receivable 1.61 -
1) Amount Payable 273.84 -
iii} Secunty deposil receivad 0.55 -
3 Associate of the Company )
A 1) Scrabbie Ventures LL.C
aj Performance guarantee given on behaif of associate 3,458,57 3.252.21
B il} Scrabble Dlgltai Limited
a) Amounl receivable - 037
b) Amouni Payable - 61.00
4 Fellow subsidiaries
A Loan given
1} Valuable Digital Screens Private Limiled 3,870.00 2,005.00
W} Interest receivable 748.14 412,28
5 Provision for Directors remuneration expenses
i) Ms. Lynn de Souza - 175
i} Mr_ S Madhavan - 1.75

The transaclions wilh relaled parties are made on terms equivalant to those hat prevail in arm's lenglh transactions, The assessment is underaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the
relaled party and the market in which the related party operales. Qutstanding balances at year the year-end are unsecured.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Company:

Rs. In lacs
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Remuneration 71.77 70.38

‘Key Managenal Personnel and Relatives of promoters who are under the employment of the Company are entitled lo post employment benefits and olher long lerm employee benefits recognised as per Ind As -19-
Employee Benofits in |he financial slatemenls .As these employee benefils are lump sum amounis provided on the basis of acluarial valuation, the same is not included above.as they are determined on an actuarial
oasis [or the Company as a whole.

31. Capltal and other commitments Rs. in lacs
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Other Commitments (Operaling expenses) 4,75 29013
4.76 29013

32. Contingent liabllities Rs. Inlacs
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
24,209.96 22,765.44

Performance guarantees issued by the Company on behalf of Subsidiaries and associates lo two studios for the performance of obligation relaling to distribution of their
digilal conlenl by ils subsidiaries, slep down subsidiaries and associales of subsidiary in certain overseas market. (USD 350 Lacs (31 March 2018: USD 350 Lacs)) (refer
nole i below)

24,209.96 22,766.44

Notes:

) The follawing parfurmance guarantees & oulslanding at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018
a) LS5 20 Mn each 10 a studio on behall of Scrabble Enfertainment Mauritius Lid and Serabble Entertainment DMCC
The aggregata liabiity under the atoresaid two guarantees has been capped al an overall celling of USD 20 Mn, expiring on 31 December 2019,
b) US$ 5 Mn to a stutio on behall of Scrabbie Entertainment DMCC. expiring on 30 June 2020
) LSS 5 Mn b & stutho on behall of Scrabible Entertainment Mauritius Lid, axpiring on 30 June 2019
@) USS & Mn 10 & studio an bahall an-assogiate.of a subsidiary, expiring on 30 June 2020

The above does nol include all ather obligations resuiling from cuslomer claims, legal pronouncements having financial impact in respect of which the Company generally performs the assessment based on the externat
legal opinion and the amount of which cannot be reliably estimaled.

33. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Acl, 2006 ('MSMED') which came in to force from 2 Oclober, 2008, cenlain disclosures are required to be made relating to dues to Micro and Small
enterpnses On Ihe basis of Informalion and records available wilh the Management, the following disclosures are made for the amounts dus to Micro and Small enterprises:

Particular 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Principal amount due and remaining unpaid - -
Interest due on above and the unpaid interest - .
Inlerest paid

Paymenl made beyond the appoinled day during lhe year -

Inlerest accrued and remaining unpaid - .
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years
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34. Financial Instruments -Accounting Classlifications and Falr Value Measurement

The fair value of lhe Financial Assels and liabilities are included al the amount , at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties other than in a forced or liquidalion sale
The following table provides the fair value management hierarchy of the Company's FInancial assets and llabllities.

The Carrying vaiue and falr value of financial assets by categories as at March 31, 2019 were as follows:

Rs. In lacs
Particulars Amortised cost* Fair value Fair value Total carrying | Hierarchy
through other | through profit or value
comprehenslve loss
income
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalenls 142.58 - - 142.58
Trade Receivables 1,582.30 - - 1,582.30
Loans 4,282.09 - - 4,282,09
Invesiments in olher securities - 1,967.63 1,967.63 | Level 2
Other Financial assets 1,005.12 - - 1,005.12
Total 7,012.09 - 1,967.63 8,979.72
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables
(i) lolal outslanding dues ol micro enterprises and small - - - B
enlerprises
(ii) tolal oulslanding dues of creditors olher than micro 2,623.75 - - 2,623.75
enlerprises and small enlerprises
Other finangial liabililies 1,472.27 - - 1,472.27
Total 4,096.02 - - 4,096.02
Details for the year ended 31 March 2018 are as follows:
Rs. In lacs
Particulars Amortised cost* Fair value Fair value Total carrying | Hierarchy
through other | through profit or value
comprehensive loss
income
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 367.93 - - 367.93
Other Bank Balance 728.94 - - 728.94
Trade Receivables 1,154.14 - - 1,154.14
Loans 2,692.91 - - 2,692.91
Investments in other securities - - 3,822.41 3,822.41 | Level 2
Olher Financial assels 886.74 - - 886.74
Total 5,830.66 - 3,822.41 9,653.07
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables
(i) lotal outstanding dues of micro enlerprises and small - E - .
enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors olher lhan micro 3,915.27 - - 3,915.27
enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabililies 1,693.05 - - 1,693.05
Total 5,608,32 - - 5,608,32

' The Company considers that the carrying amounts of these financial instrumenls recognised in the financial stalements approximates ils fair values
There have been no lransfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.
35. Financial Risk Management -Objectives and policles

The Company's financial habilites comprise mainly of borrowings, Irade payables , olher payables and Corporate guarantses, The Company's financial assets comprise mainly of investments , cash and cash equivalents
other balances with banks, loans , trade receivables and other recsivables

Tne Company is exposed o markel risk , credil nsk and liguidity risk. The Company's Senior Management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior managemenl determines the financial risks and
the appropriate financial risk governance framework through relevant policies and procedures for the Company. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are
summaiised below:

1. Market Risk

Market Risk Is lhe risk that the fair value of future cash llows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becuse of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risks: interest rale risk and currency risk
Financial Inslrumenls affecled by market risk include borrowings. investments and deposits, loans and derivative financial instrumenls

a) Interest Rate risk !

Interasl rale nsk s the 11sk lhat he fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucluate because of changes in market interesl rates
The Company does nol have borrowings therefore 15 nol exposed to interest rate risk
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b) Currency Rlsk

Currency risk 1s the fisk hal the fair value or future cash flows of financial insiruments will flucluale because of the changs in foreign currency exchange rales. The majarity of the Company's revenue and expense are in
Indian Rupees. excepl few denominated in US Dollars. Management considers currency risk to be low and does not hedge its own currency risks

The Company regularly evaluales exchange rates exposure arising from foreign currency lransactions for taking apprapriate actions

Rs. In lacs
Outstanding foreign Currency Exposure as at 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Export Debtors 112.60 168,15
usp 1.63 259
Impor Credilors 19.88 50.48
UsD 0.29 078
Advance from customers - 34.42 26.97
usD 0.50 0.41
Advances lo Supplier - 008
usoD . 0.00
Cash Balances 0.64 081
usD 0.01 0.06
Bank Balances - 455
uUsD - 0.07

The following tables demonslrate the sensilivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with ail other variables held constant. The impact on the Company's profit before lax is dus o changes in the fair
valua of monetary assets and liabilities

Rs. in lacs
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1% increase (n foreign exchangs rale : 0.69 0.96
1% (decrease )in foreign exchange rale {0.59) (0 96)

2, Credit Risk :

Credi nsk 1s the nsk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the conlractual terms or obligations, Credit risk encompasses of both, he direct risk of default and the risk of
Jelenoration of creditworihiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness as well as concentralion of risks. Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limit and
crediworthiness of cuslomers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granled after obtaining necessary approval for credit.

Financial instruments that are subjecl to concentration of credit risk principally consisl of trade recsivables, unbilled revenue, investments, derivalive financial instruments, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and
olher financial assels

Exposure to credit risk:

The carrying amount of financial assets represenls the maximum credit exposure. The maximum credil risk exposure to credit risk was Rs 2729.28 lacs and Rs 2407.21 lacs as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018
respeclively as per the table holow

Trade recewables and unbilled revenue are lypically unsecured and are derived from revenus earned from customers. Credit risk has always been managed by the Company by continuously monitoring the credil
worlhiness of customers la which the Cormpany grants credit terms in the normal course of business

Credil risk on cash and cash equivalenls is limited as the Company generally invest in depasits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit raling agencies

— Rs. in lacs
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balance with Banks including bank depesits 194,63 54247
Trade Receivables 1,582.30 1,154 14
Unbilled revenue 203.84 236.73
Other inancial assels = 748.51 473.87
Total 2,729.28 2,407.21

3. Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitment associated with financial instruments thal are seltied by delivering cash or anolher financial assets. Liquidity risk

may result from an inabilily lo sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value

Tha Conpuny has an established liquidity nsk managament framewark lor maniaging its shor term, medium lerm and long term funding and liquidity management requirements, The Company's exposura lo liquidily risk

anses primanly lrom mismatches of tha matunties of financial assets and liabiities. The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from ils operations. The
Tipany has fo outstanding bank borrowings, The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meel its current requirements Accordingly no liquidity risk is perceived

The table below analyses financial liabillies of the Company into relevant malurily based on the remaining period from the reporting dale to the conlractual malturity date The amounts disclosed in the lable are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows

Rs. In lacs
Particulars Less than 1 year BetwEsnHtiols Over 5 years Total
years

Al 31 March 2019
Trade Payables 2,623.75 - . 2,62375
Other financial liabilities 873.38 598.89 - 147227
At 31 March 2018
Trade Payabies 3,915.27 - . 3.915.27
Other financial liabililies 1,286 92 406 13 - 1,693.05
36. Contract balances
The following labie provides informalion aboul receivables, contracl assets and contracl liabililies from conlracts wilh cuslomers: Rs. in lacs
Contract Llabilities (Advance or deferred Income) Amount In Rupees
Opening balance 1 April 2018 229.94
Less revenus recognised thal was included in Lhe conlract liabilities at the beginning of he year 60.10
Add invoices raised for which no revenus Is recognised during the year 43.39
Closing balance 31 March 2019 213.23

—_— e

The Company receives paymenls from customers based upon contractual billing schedules

Accounts receivable are recorded when the right to consideration becomes unconditional.

Contracl assels includes amounts relaled to our contractual right to consideration for completed performance objeclives not yet invoiced and deferred contracl acquisition costs, which are amoriized along with the
Hssocialed ravenue

Contract liabililes include payments recsived in advance of performance under the contract, and are realized with the associaled revenus recognized under the contract. There are no conlract assets as at 31 March

2019
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Recoriciliation of revenue recognised in the statement of proflt and loss with the contracted price

31March 2019
8,128.74

Parliculars

Revenue from contracls with customers (as per Statemen! of Profil and Loss)
Add Discounts, rebales, refunds, credils, price concessions

Less / Add: Deferred and unbilled revenue adjustments (16.70)
Add Allocalion of transaction price from bundled contracls

Contracted price with the customers 8112.04

Practical expedients used
In accordance with the practical expedient in Para 63 of Ind AS 115, the Comgany has nol adjusled the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if the Company expects, at
contract incepnion that the period between when the Company transfars 8 promised good or service to a customer and when the cuslomer pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

37. Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company's capital managemant. capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves, The primary objective of the Company's capilal management is o ensure the going concern operalion
and lo maintain an efficient capital siruclure lo suppert lhe corporate stralegy and maximise shareholder value.

The capital slruclure is govemaed by policies approved by the Board of Directors and is monitored by various melrics. The Company mainltains focus on capilal efficisncy withoulincurring materiel indebtedness and have
positivee working capital @nd positive free cash flows. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic enviranment and the requirements of (he financial covenanls
No changes were made in the objeclives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March, 2019 and 31 March, 2018,

38, Events subscquent to balance sheet date

(a) Proposed dividend on equily shares

Rs.in lacs
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Proposed divasend on equily shares for the year endad on 31 March 2019 Rs 800 per share (31 March 2018: Rs Nil) 4610.32
Dividend dislnbution tax on proposed dividend 947.67
§667.99

Proposed dividend
Proposed dividends on equily shares, which are subject (o approval at the annual general meeting are nol recognised as a liability (including Dividend Distribution Tax (hereon) in the year in which itis proposed

39. Corporate social responsibillty

As ner Secton 135 of the Act and rules therein, the Company is required to spend al least 2% of average nel profit of past three years towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Detais of corporate social
responsibility expenditures are as follows'

Rs In lacs
Particulars Forihe year ended
¢ " 31 Mar 2018 31 Mar 2018
Gross amounli required 1o bo spent 8118 58.03
Speni dunng the yoar
Batance unspeat during the year 81.18 §8.03

40. Oetails of Loans given, investment inade and Guarantee give convered u/s 186(4) of the Companles Act, 2013,

Irvestment made are given under the respective head (Refer Note 4)

Dutails of [0an_iven Rs. in tacs
Sr. No, Name of the loanee Rate of Interest 31 March 2017  Oiven during tho  Repayment during 31 March 2018
year the year
Valuable Digital Screens Pavate Limiled 950% 10 12.50% 1,600.00 405 00 2,005.00
1 600.00 406.00 2006.00
Rs.inlacs

Detalis of loan given

Glven during the

Repayment during

Sr. No. Name:of the loance Rateof interest 31 March 2018 31 March 2019
year the year
Valuable Digital Screens Private Limiled 9 50% 10 12 50% 2,005 00 1,865 00 3.87000
2005.00 1 866.00 J 870.00

*The loan and inelersl given lo the above mentioned entity Is repayable on demand for purpose of working capital requirement for new exhibition business

41 Investmnents during the year

On Oclaber 25, 2618, the Board of Directors of Serabble Entertainman; Limiled {SEL) had approved the ecquisilion of 395,428 equily shares of Scrabble Digilal Limited (SDL), an asscciate of SEL, from other eguity
shai ehtidars for 3 (otel congideralion of Rs. 2 400 Lacs. Qui ot Ine epproved acquision of ihe ehove mantioned number of shares 395,427 were acquired on December 15, 2018, subsequent to which SDL has becoma
subsidiary f SEL, the remaining 1 share was acquifad on January 14, 2019 aftar which the trensaction was consuryneled.

As per our report of even dale attached
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